In the event of any inconsistency between data provided in this document, the Final RFP, the language in the Final RFP, including any amendments, will govern.
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Changes from previous posting:

· Question 34 Response was made consistent with previous guidance.
· Question 68 Response was clarified.

· Question 82 Response was clarified.
· Question 68 Response was clarified again and reflects a SOW change.

· Question 32 and 34 Responses changed to reflect separation of Program Management Plan and Staffing Plan. 
· Updated Response to Question 60.

At the Site Visit, the folks who will be reading from scripts – will the scripts be provided in the technical library?
Response:
Yes, the scripts read on the tour at Industry Day were uploaded the week of September 12, 2008.

For remote site launch operations (such as Poker Flat, Alaska), who has meteorological support responsibility?

Response:
It depends.  For Poker Flat, Alaska, meteorological support is provided by the Wallops Range Services contractor.  However, this is not the case for all remote launch operations.  For instance, for the Sounding Rocket launches that occur in Norway, the Norway Range provides this support.  Specific range services requirements are defined in project specific requirements documents for every project and in the SOW and RTO’s for this DRFP.
How is local Meteorological Data obtained?

Response:

Meteorological Data is a very broad term as there are a number of different data.  Numerous examples exist such as local weather sensors, web-based meteorological information such as NOAA, and NWS, and satellite links to NOAA.
What forecast model is used?

Response:
The meteorological office uses a number of various forecast models.  These include, but are not limited to the NAM, GFS, GEFS, HRW, and NGM weather forecast models, 
How long is Runway?

Response:
There are 3 runways at Wallops Flight Facility.  They are 8750 feet, 8000 feet, and 4820 feet long.
What is Largest Aircraft supported by airport?

Response:
The largest aircraft support in recent years has been C-17 and C-5 class aircraft.  The airport has supported an Antonov AN-124 in the past but it is not certain if this aircraft can be currently accommodated without incurring airfield damage.
Why is Met Office and Met operations separated?

Response:
The Met Office, where the meteorologists are located, is located in close proximity to the Range Control Center based on desires of the NASA Range Safety Office.  The Met operations are located in areas that are in close proximity to balloon deployment facilities.
What is the Type/Model of operational weather radars?

Response:
Range instrumentation systems information can be found in the Range Operations Services bidder’s library.
Will the listing of Industry Day attendees be posted and added to the library?

Response:
Yes.  The listing of listing of Industry Day attendees was posted to the bidder’s library the week of September 8, 2008.

To avoid any misinterpretation, please provide the dates for the period of performance.
Response:



Start


End
Phase-in   

9 May 2009

8 July 2009

Contract Year 1
9 July 2009

8 July 2010

Contract Year 2
9 July 2010

8 July 2011

Contract Year 3
9 July 2011 

8 July 2012

Contract Year 4
9 July 2012

8 July 2013

Contract Year 5
9 July 2013

8 July 2014

What are the required hours of meteorological operations at Wallops Flight Facility (WFF) and Poker Flat Research Range (PFRR)?

Response:
Standard hours of operation are 0830-1600 local.  However, mission requirements do require hours of operation to be modified.  Specific support requirements are defined in the SOW and RTO’s and the Offeror should propose the level of service needed to support the requirements defined in the SOW and associated RTO’s.
What are the required hours of surface weather observation operations?

Response:
See response to Question 11.  The Offeror should propose the level of service needed to support the requirements defined in the SOW and associated RTO’s.
What is the frequency of missions at Wallops Flight Facility (WFF) and Poker Flat Research Range (PFRR) requiring meteorological services?

Response:
The frequency of missions, (i.e. the missions requiring meteorological operations) is defined in the SOW and associated RTO’s.  Meteorological services are defined in Section 11 in the SOW and the RTO’s define requirements for meteorological services along with the schedules for these missions requiring these services.
What is the frequency of missions at remote locations requiring meteorological services?

Response:
The frequency of missions requiring meteorological operations at remote locations is defined in the SOW and associated RTO’s.  Meteorological services are defined in Section 11 in the SOW and the RTO’s define requirements for meteorological services along with the schedules for the missions requiring these services.  The frequency of future missions will be defined in Task Orders under this contract.  It will vary from year to year.
What is the maximum number of simultaneous missions requiring meteorological support?  
Response:
The maximum number of simultaneous missions requiring meteorological support is defined in the SOW and associated RTO’s that includes mission schedules.  Meteorological services are defined in Section 11 in the SOW and the RTO’s define requirements for meteorological services along with the schedules for the missions requiring these services.  The maximum number of simultaneous missions will be defined in IDIQ Task Orders under this contract.  It will vary from year to year.
What are hours of operations during missions at WFF, PFRR and remote locations?

Response:
The hours of operations during missions at WFF, PFRR and remote locations is defined in the SOW and associated RTO’s.  In addition, the bidder’s library contains mission specific requirements documents that provide further detail in addition to the overtime levels to be expected defined in the SOW.  See answer to Question 11.
Can you please provide the requirements and details for the special forecasts as required for various project requirements and/or special weather events.

Response:
The requirements and details for the special forecasts as required for various project requirements and/or special weather events is defined in the SOW and associated RTO’s and in associated projects requirements documents provided in the bidder’s library.  These documents in the bidders library include the Mission Operations Directives for missions included in RTO #1 and #2.  Special forecasts support hurricane preparedness, upper air forecasts for toxic plume analysis often required for larger launch vehicles, and general weather forecasting that assists with launch schedule commitments.
What is the required frequency of specialized weather forecasts?

Response:
The frequency of specialized weather forecasts is not known since weather events are unpredictable.
What is the required frequency of special balloon soundings?

Response:
The frequency of special balloon soundings is not known since weather events are unpredictable.  Balloon sounding operations requirements are defined in the SOW, RTO’s and project requirements documents in the bidder’s library.
Can you please provide an inventory of on-hand spare parts for the meteorological instrumentation?

Response:
Government Furnished Property and Installation Accountable Government Property listings, both of which contain on hand spare parts, are provided in the bidder’s library.
Can you provide the various mission specific requirements and documents to determine the specific meteorological services requirements to meet all mission requirements?

Response:
These requirements are located in the mission operations directives, project plans, and other documents already in the bidder’s library.
In Section L, Page 108, Para 5, The DRFP states: “In accordance with the SOW defined risk identification processes, the Offer’s RMP shall describe the risk management techniques that will be used to identify and manage risks…”.  Although risk management is discussed throughout the SOW, and in particular within paragraphs 3.0, 3.1.1, 3.1.2, and 3.1.3, the SOW does not appear to identify, or define, any risk identification processes.  Paragraph 3.1.3 states that the COTR will provide the format for the Monthly Status Report (MSR) and discusses risk reporting artifacts to be included in the MSR, but it does not identify or define any risk identification processes, per se.  Please clarify and provide the risk identification processes referred to in Section L.  

Response:
The risk identification process referenced is the process that is utilized to define a risk and document it for the MSR.  The Offeror is to propose their own risk management approach and identify and categorize the risks in the format defined by the Government and present these risks in the forums defined in the SOW.
P-126, Paragraph L.15(b) Past Performance, “The Offer and any proposed major subcontractor shall submit the questionnaires provided in Enclosure 5….”.   Enclosure 5 does not appear to be included in the draft RFP.
Response:
The Past Performance Questionnaire was uploaded to the website on August 29, 2008.

SOW Page 5, ninth paragraph – Is the government furnishing Maximo and its user licenses as GFE or will we have to price it in our proposal?

Response:

The contractor shall provide Maximo® and associated user licenses and price it in the proposal.  The Government will retain ownership of the data in Maximo® upon contract completion.  See SOW Section 3.0.
SOW Page 6, 3.1 – Text refers to RSMs defined in Sec 3.4.  It should refer to Sec 4.1.

Response:

Correct.  The SOW will be updated to reference paragraph 4.1.

SOW Page 6, paragraph 3.1.1, 3.1.2 and 3.1.3 – Can an example of a recent Range Readiness Review (RRR) document, a Weekly Activity Report (WAR) and a Monthly Status Report be posted to the bidders library?

Response:

A recent Range Readiness Review document and instrumentation systems portion of a Range Readiness Review was uploaded to the bidders library the week of September 15, 2008.  The contractor-provided WAR and Monthly Status Report are new requirements for this contract.  The minimum requirements for the RRR, WAR, and Monthly Status Report can be found in SOW Section 3.1.1, Section 3.1.2, and Section 3.1.3 respectively.
SOW Page 8, 3.1.5 – Will the Government post a comprehensive description of WIIMS to the bidders library?  

Response:

The WIIMS description was provided at Industry Day and the Industry Day presentations, including WIIMS, has been uploaded to the bidders library.
SOW Page 18, Section 4 – Will a description of the Wallops IT architecture and infrastructure, including all software and hardware configuration items, be posted to the bidders library? 
Response:

No.  The entire Wallops Flight Facility IT architecture information requested is not relevant to this contract.
SOW Page 20, 4.1 Operations and Engineering Project Management – Will a list of planned engineering projects and associated scheduling data be posted to the bidders’ library?

Response:

Engineering projects associated with maintenance and sustainment of the Wallops Research Range is to be proposed by the Offeror as part of their technical approach.  Any Government required engineering projects required are defined in the RTO and will be subsequently defined in contract Task Order’s.
SOW Page 25, 5.1, last two paragraphs – Does the Range and Mission Management Office have a range technology development plan or other range development/evolution guidance?  If so, please post to the bidder’s library.

Response:

There is no current range technology development plan or other range development/evolution guidance other than what has been included in the bidders library.
DRFP Page 88 – Section J.1 of the DRFP calls out the contract attachments required.  Included are a Quality Assurance Plan (Attch L) and a Government Property and Logistics Management Plan (Attch P).  In Section L, on the page count chart on page 102, plans are excluded from the page count.  Neither the QA plan nor the Government Property and Logistics Management Plan are mentioned.  Are these plans required to be delivered with the proposal and will they be excluded from the page count?  These two plans are also not mentioned in the Mission Suitability Proposal instructions (Section L.13).
Response:

Section J.1 will be changed to allow Attachment L (Quality Assurance Plan) and Attachment P (Government Property and Logistics Management Plan) to be submitted 30 days after contract effective date.  As such, these plans will remain off of the page counts chart since they are not due with the proposal.

DRFP Page 102, L.11(b)(1) – Recommend limiting the Program Management Plan (PMP) to 75 pages or other Government-established page constraint to facilitate the government’s evaluation and to provide a common standard for all offerors.
Response:

The RFP will be changed to limit Program Management Plan to 100 pages.
DRFP Page 107, para L.13(3), Subfactor A – In the table, TIP is defined as “Task” Implementation Plan; in the text, “Technical” Implementation Plan.  Please clarify which is correct.  Recommend “Task” Implementation Plan.
Response:

TIP stands for Task Implementation Plan.  All references to TIP as “Technical” Implementation Plan will be changed to “Task”.
DRFP Page 109, L.13(3), Subfactor B – Please confirm that the 125-page limitation is totally allocated to Mission Suitability Subfactor A and the RTO TIPs, and that Subfactor B is currently not page limited.

Response:

The RFP will be changed to limit Program Management Plan (PMP) to 100 pages.
DRFP Page 112, Section L.13, Subfactor B, para 4 – The NENS contract requires the incumbent Prime Contractor to develop and deliver a Phase-Out plan to NASA not later than one year prior to the expiration of the contract, i.e., 8 Oct 07, and to be updated quarterly after that date. Will this Phase-Out plan and updates be posted to the Bidder’s Library so a realistic and coordinated Phase-In plan can be proposed on an FFP basis?

Response:
The NENS Contract Phase-Out Plan will be uploaded to the bidders library the week of September 8, 2008.
DRFP Page 121, Section L.14(2)(d) – Regarding the required detailed backup cost spreadsheets, is the desired format Exhibit 2-A broken out by month?

Response:

As stated in the DRFP Section L.14, 2(d), Exhibit 2A is broken out by contract year.

DRFP Page 122, Section L.14(2)(d) – Do the plug numbers provided in the DRFP for material and travel include G&A and material loadings or shall contractors add G&A and material loadings on top of these plug numbers?

Response:

The plug numbers do not include G&A and material loadings.
DRFP Page 122, Section L.14(2)(f) and Exhibit 2 – BOEs and certain costs are required to be reported at WBS level 2.  If labor is loaded against level 1 WBS (example 3.0 Program Mgmt and 4.0 Integrated Range Services Mgmt), can those costs/BOEs be reported at WBS level 1?

Response:

Yes.
Exhibit 2 – Recommend that Overhead, ODCs, G&A, Cost of Money, Award Fee Percentage not be provided by WBS (only labor hours and cost be provided by WBS Level 2).

Response:

All cost elements shall be provided by WBS.

DRFP Page 124, Sections L.14(2)(k) and (l) – The DRFP requires compilation of separate Exhibits 8 and 9 for exempt and nonexempt employees.  Are the nonexempt spreadsheets to include nonexempt (subject to DOL/WD) and union employees or shall a separate spreadsheet be prepared for union employees as well?

Response:

The nonexempt spreadsheets are to include nonexempt (subject to DOL/WD) and union employees.
DRFP Page 124, Section L.14(2)(l) – Is Exhibit 9 to be completed for each contract year or just contract year 1?

Response:

Exhibit 9 is to be completed for each contract year.  This will clarified in the RFP and cost exhibits.
DRFP page 134, M.4 (1) SUBFACTOR A, paragraph 5 - Where are “the Government’s provided risk likelihood and consequence definitions” located?

Response:

These definitions are located in NPR 8000.4 - Risk Management Procedural Requirements.  This reference was uploaded to the bidders library the week of September 8, 2008.

DRFP Page 139 Subfactor D, Small Business Subcontracting, Line 11 – Reference states the evaluation of the Small Business Subcontracting Plan will be on the basis of the IDIQ maximum ordering value.  This disagrees with Page 115, Section L.D(6):  NOTE:  FOR PURPOSES OF THE SMALL BUSINESS SUBCONTRACTING PLAN, THE PROPOSED GOALS SHALL BE STATED AS A PERCENT OF TOTAL SUBCONTRACTS, NOT AS A PERCENT OF THE IDIQ MAXIMUM ORDERING VALUE.  Please clarify.

Response:

There is no disagreement.  The proposed goals shall be expressed as a percent of total IDIQ maximum ordering value AND as a persent of the total plan subcontracts.  See Example 1 in Section L.13, Subfactor D (Small Business Utilization), Small Business Subcontracting.  For evaluation purposes, the Government will need both calculations.  For the actual work, the NOTE in L.D(6) applies.
DRFP Page 141, M.4 (2) Weights and Scoring – Should the Subfactor B title be “Program Management Plan” instead of  “Management Approach & Compensation and Staffing”?
Response:

To achieve consistency, L.13 (2) Mission Suitability Proposal Format will be changed to read:

Subfactor A:  Technical Approach and Understanding the Requirement

Subfactor B:  Program Management

Subfactor C:  Safety and Health
Subfactor D:  Small Business Utilization

M.4, Subfactor D, Evaluation of Deviations/Exceptions, (2) Weights and Scoring will be changed to read:
Subfactor A: 
Technical Approach and Understanding the Requirement 
500

Subfactor B: 
Program Management





300

Subfactor C: 
Safety and Health





100

Subfactor D: 
Small Business Utilization 




100



   






1,000

RTOs 1 and 2 – Recommend adding page numbers to the RTOs.

Response:

The Government will number the pages for RTO #1 and #2.
RTO #1, Page 1, Task and Page 2, MISSION SET – MODs and/or corresponding Project Plans for Mission Set 1, STS Flight Readiness Data Flows, and Mission Set 3, Shuttle Launch Supports are not included in the bidders’ library as of 26 Aug 08.

Response:

All Shuttle requirements, including those for the Wallops Research Range, are defined in a corresponding Space Shuttle Network Operations Support Plan.  This was uploaded to the bidders library the week of September 8, 2008.
RTO #1, Pages 2 and 3 - Is the Minotaur launch December 15 or December 16?
Response:

December 15.  RTO #1 will be corrected.
RTO #1 and #2 – RTO requirements are clear as stated.  However, the associated mission requirements documents for Mission Sets 1 and 3 are required to effectively price the RTOs and prepare compliant and responsive task implementation plans.

Response:

All Shuttle requirements, including those for the Wallops Research Range, are defined in a corresponding Space Shuttle Network Operations Support Plan.  This was uploaded to the bidders library the week of September 8, 2008.
The DRFP has no reference to Enclosures 3 and 4.  However, Enclosures 1, 2 and 5 are cited.  Are Enclosures 3 and 4 intentionally omitted?

Response:

Yes.  Enclosures 3 and 4 were intentionally skipped for administrative purposes.

Will the overall maintenance schedule for range instrumentation and other hardware/GFE be posted to the bidders’ library?

Response:

The overall maintenance schedule is determined by the Offeror’s overall maintenance approach which will be part of the proposal evaluation.  Therefore, the current maintenance schedule for range instrumentation will not be posted to the bidders library.
Please post to the bidders library a list of all vendors and subcontractors supplying services and/or materials to the incumbent range contractor.

Response:

This information is proprietary to the current contractor as these vendors and subcontractors were chosen due to the current contractor’s technical and management approach.  This information will not be posted to the bidders library.

Section L.14.  Please identify the contract start date as it affects pricing of the RTO's.
Response:

The contract start date is July 9, 2009 and the model contract will be changed to reflect this date.
Section J.1 lists a "Quality Assurance Plan" that is to be proposed (TBP) by the offeror.  Is this document excluded from the page count as is the case with other supporting documentation listed in Section L.11 (b) (1)?
Response:

Yes.  The exclusion of the Quality Assurance Plan from the page count limitations will be reflected in the FRFP.
Section 5.2 – Will Independent Verification and Validation (IV&V), especially during transition of other contractors’ efforts, be a requirement for this procurement? 
Response:

If IV&V is a requirement, it will be defined in task orders under this contract.  The SOW has been modified to include the requirement for IV&V services to be defined in IDIQ task orders under this contract.
As RTO#1 includes all activities required to operate the complete Wallops range, we believe a 4 hour site tour is inadequate to obtain a firm understanding of the unique requirements, systems and processes required to develop an adequate TIP.  We request that the Government consider establishing a longer site visit or due diligence process which affords the offerors the opportunity to discuss the range operations requirements with the local managers as part of the visit.  In our discussions with the Government, we were assured that the offerors would be afforded significant opportunity to kick the tires and see all critical elements of the Range Operations.  Alternatively, if a longer site visit is not feasible, we request that Government reconsider the RTO #1 as provided.  The existing RTO #1 while certainly testing the offeror's knowledge of Range Mission Operations, as written it heavily favors those companies that have specifically worked on the Wallops Range.  Even with the extensive documentation provided in the ROC Library, hands on knowledge at the WFF gives the incumbent(s) a significant advantage in responding.  As such, we request that the Government replace the existing RTO #1 with RTOs that are focused on specific missions, processes to upgrade systems, or approaches to responding to ad hoc scenarios as these are less likely to require a more detailed due diligence process. 

Response:

As stated in the question, the bidders library contains extensive documentation.  The RFI was released in April 2007 with an open door policy until just recently.  The SOW was released in February 2008 with an opportunity to submit comments and see well in advance the scope of the requirement.  The Government considered this request and it is felt that given the Industry Day activities that includes a review of the requirement and associated systems and a tour of the range instrumentation systems, sufficient information and insight is available for all Offerors.  The scope of RTO #1 will not be replaced with another scenario as requested.
RFP Clause B.8 states that delivery or task orders may be issued from April 1, 2009 (the effective ordering date of this contract) through a five (5) year period afterwards (the effective ordering period of this contract).   Appendix A of the Performance Evaluation Plan indicates that the first award fee period begins on 1 July 2009.  Please clarify the start dates for the phase-in period and full contract performance.
Response:

The phase-in will be from May 9, 2009 to July 8, 2009.  The effective period of the contract will begin on July 9, 2009.  DRFP Section B.8 will be revised to show this change and other inconsistencies in the DRFP will also be corrected as needed.
Does the Government intend to provide, in the form of a CDRL or DRD, the required/preferred formats for documentation such as Task Implementation Plans?
Response:

No, but the minimum requirement is contained in DRFP Section B.7.
Section J.1, List of Attachments, identifies Attachment P, Government Property & Logistics Management Plan, as a document “TBP” or to be proposed.  This Plan is not identified in Section L.11 (b)(1) on page 102.  Please clarify if a Property & Logistics Management Plan is required in the proposal.  If so, please identify the contents of the Plan in Sections L and M and include it in Section L.11 (b)(1) as excluded from page count.
Response:

The Property and Logistics Management Plan delivery will be changed in J.1 such that it is required 30 days after the contract effective date.
Section J.1, List of Attachments, identifies Attachment L, Quality Assurance Plan, as a document “TBP” or to be proposed.  This Plan is not identified in Section L.11 (b)(1) on page 102.  Please clarify if a Quality Assurance Plan is required in the proposal.  If so, please modify Section L.13, Subfactor A, paragraph 9, “quality services” to indicate a Quality Assurance Plan is required.  Additionally, please identify it in Section L.11 (b)(1) as excluded from page count.
Response:

The discrepancy has been identified.  It is the Government’s intent to have the Quality Assurance Plan excluded from the page count.  Also the Quality Assurance Plan will be provided 30 days after contract effective date.

RFP Clause G.6 stipulates award fee evaluations periods of one year, following the first two six-month periods.  In light of the absence of provisional fee, please consider maintaining six month award fee periods throughout the period of performance.  Our experience is that more frequent feedback results in better understanding of the customer’s dynamic requirements.
Response:

The Government intends to maintain the award fee calendar as is and interim feedback will be provided during the task period of performance.  In addition, the Government will revise Clause G.6 to allow for provisional award fee payments on a monthly basis.
RFP Clause G.10:  Please clarify the type of supplies (e.g. administrative, components parts, spare parts, etc.) that are not being provided by the Government.
Response:

Supplies from Store Stock include office store stock items such as paper, pencils, pens, and other office administration items.  Spare parts will not be provided by the Government.
RFP Clause G.10:  Please clarify if the Government will provide IT equipment and services (interfacing with Government systems) for use in any required contractor-supplied off-site facilities.
Response:

Yes, but only if deemed “required” by the Government or specifically identified in a task order.
RFP Clause G.10 – Please clarify if the Government will provide the following services (e.g. ODIN provided printers, data storage (e.g. servers), email services, cellular services). 
Response:

Yes.  These services will be Government provided as required.

Section L.11(a)(5) states, “The proposal shall reference where in the proposal the technical requirements of the SOW (using the SOW numbering structure as the proposal Work Breakdown Structure (WBS)), RTO’s, and the evaluation criteria of this RFP are satisfied (i.e. SOW section number versus Offeror's proposal page or section number).”  Please clarify what reference data should be included. Should it be organized by evaluation factor? Or organized by SOW? Will the reference be excluded from page count? 
Response:

Section L.11 has been modified to specifically call out the requirement for a Compliance Matrix.  The Compliance Matrix will be added to the table in L.11 (b) and it will not be page count limited.  The Compliance Matrix shall be organized by Evaluation Factor.
Section L.11(b)(1), Proposal Content and Page Limitations, does not identify the compliance matrix as being excluded from page count in Volume II.  Please clarify in which Volume the compliance matrix should be provided and that it is excluded from page count.

Response:

See answer to Question 64.
RFP, Section B, paragraph B.2(b) states a proposal is required to support a request for an increase in the estimated cost of the contract or the task order.  The proposal shall be submitted as soon as possible after the above notification but no later than 115 days before the incurred costs are expected to exceed the estimated cost. 115 days is almost 4 months. It is not always possible to determine that a task order might incur an increase in the estimated cost that early especially for short duration task orders.  Can the Government review this requirement?

Response:

The Government has reviewed this requirement and feels that it is adequate.  To help with cost accrual, the WIIMS system, when implemented, will have a cost accuracy to enable communication with the Government about costs or to form a proposal.  It gives necessary information to make informed and timely decisions.

RFP, Section B, paragraph B.4 Estimated Cost and Award Fee indicates the Maximum award fee will be negotiated in each Task Order.  Is any base fee permitted or must all fee be bid as award fee?

Response:

All fee is award fee only, no “base fee” per NFS 1816.405-271a.
SOW, Section 3.0 Program Management, last sentence, indicates the contractor shall use Maximo® Version 6.2 or greater to perform maintenance data management and property logistics management.  Is Maximo® Version 6.2 currently used? Is this Government Furnished software?

Response:

The SOW will be updated to reflect that the contractor shall use Maximo® Version 5.2 or greater to perform maintenance data management and property logistics management.  Maximo® Version 6.2 is not currently used. Maximo® will not be Government Furnished software?
Is this solicitation affected by Public Law 101-181, Section 843 “Enhanced Competition Requirements for Task Order and Delivery Order Contracts” requiring multiple awards on all IDIQ contracts over $100M?
Response:

No.  A Determination for Single Award has been initiated and approved by the Government.
We understand that some of the existing work force is covered by Collective Bargaining Agreements.  Request the applicable Collective Bargaining Agreements be posted to the website.

Response:

The Government will upload the Collective Bargaining Agreements to the bidders library upon approval.

What is the estimated date for release of the final RFP?

Response:

By October 15, 2008.

With all the plans requested as part of the proposal, how long will the proposal response time be?

Response:

Past performance information is due 30 days from release of the Final RFP and all other proposal information is due 45 days after the release of the Final RFP.

Will NASA hold one-on-one meetings during or after the Industry Day? 
Response:

No.  NASA did not hold one-on-one meetings at Industry Day nor will NASA be holding one-on-one meetings subsequently.
Will the government consider excluding phase-in cost as a part of the total evaluated cost as this provides an unfair advantage for the incumbent contractor?
Response:

We are evaluating the overall cost to the Government which includes Phase In costs.

Reference Representative Task Order #1 entitled Wallops Range Operations.  Given the complex activities to be addressed with the RTO #1, we request that the Government include the weekly and monthly reports for the past year and each post mission report in the Bidder’s library.
Response:

We will not be providing this as the Offeror should propose the level of service needed to support the requirements defined in the RTO.  The Government is looking for innovation while maintaining cost efficiency and program integrity.
An example of missing data has to do with the Minotaur support in which a similar program plan states; “A level 2 WBS defining discrete deliverables and task details is being maintained by the project.”  A copy of that level 2 WBS is what is needed to adequately cost such support due to the travel schedule and set up at Coquina, NC.
Response:

All travel and materials for the identified mission has a plug number in the RFP which includes adequate funding of these items.  It is for the contractor to tell the Government what activities they will perform to be ready to accomplish the mission(s).  The schedule to implement the services is to be proposed by the contractor.  The Government does not direct the contractor’s schedule, but simply provide test and launch dates.
Reference Page 132, Section M.3 Source Selection and Evaluation Factors – General, Paragraph 3. Relative Order of Importance of Evaluation Factors.  “The Cost Factor is significantly less important than the combined importance of the Mission Suitability Factor and the Past Performance Factor. As individual factors, the Cost Factor is less important than the Mission Suitability Factor, but more important than the Past Performance Factor.”  We understand that the Government is required to include the 10% SDB price evaluation adjustment based on the NAICS utilized in the DRFP.  Given that the price evaluation provides SDBs a significant price advantage and that the evaluation criteria has placed cost as the second most important factor, we believe that this will provide a significant advantage to SDBs.  We request that the Government re-consider the evaluation factors and make Cost the least important evaluation factor. 
Response:

It was considered and determined that the Order of Importance would remain as stated.
Reference page 50, Section H.24 – Position Qualifications.  Given the importance of the evaluation criteria as noted in Subfactors A and B of Section M, we suggest the Government provide a standard set of labor categories and corresponding position descriptions as to not provide the incumbent contractors with an unfair competitive advantage.  Alternatively, would the Government consider providing the labor categories and position descriptions of the existing contract?
Response:

No, this is a performance based contract and the Offeror should propose their appropriate labor categories needed to support the requirements defined in the SOW and associated RTO’s.

Reference Section L.13 – Mission Suitability Proposal Instructions, RTO#1, and RTO#2.  In order to adequately demonstrate the Offeror’s understanding of requirements and technical approach in our proposal, is it fair to say that all aspects or functional requirements of the Statement of Work (SOW) or subsets of the SOW are to be mapped to the “mission sets” identified in the RTOs in the development of our response?
Response:

No.  Not all elements of the SOW apply to each mission defined in the RTO’s.  We will be evaluating the Offeror’s ability to map the SOW services requirements to the specific mission requirements defined in the RTO’s for each mission.  The Offeror should propose the level of service needed to support the requirements defined in the SOW and associated RTO’s.

Reference page 113, Section L.13 – Mission Suitability Proposal Instructions, Subfactor D – Small Business Utilization states, “…SDB participation apply to BOTH large and small business Offerors, except SDB Offerors, unless the SDB Offeror waives the price evaluation adjustment factor by completing paragraph I of FAR clause 52.219-2, Notice….The waiver, if elected, makes the particular SDB Offeror INELIGIBLE for the price evaluation factor adjustment but ELIGIBLE for the “evaluation credit” (points) associated with the SDB participation described in Section M.”  We recognize the Government’s intent and support the Government’s initiative to support SDBs, but we also recognize the need to eliminate any unfair competitive advantage in a highly-competitive procurement such as this one.  Given cost is the second highest evaluation criteria as cited in Section M3(3.), we ask the Government to allocate 10% (i.e., 100 points) of the Mission Suitability points to SDB Participation under Subfactor D; thus increasing Subfactor D total points to 200 points.  This approach would further promote and recognize SDB participation in the WFF Range Operations procurement while eliminating any unfair advantage from SDB Offeror(s) in taking the Price Evaluation Adjustment (PEA).
Response:
NASA has determined that 100 points is the appropriate level for the Small Business Utilization subfactor.
We feel there is considerable value to the government in having the Range Operations contractor be a key contributor to assisting the range in its growth through work for others and commercialization efforts.  Workforce utilization and technology innovation can be best addressed by the Range Operations contractor versus the SCNS contractor.  We request this be added back to the SOW and Section M. 
Response:

Thank you for the comment but this requirement remains eliminated from the RFP.
In order to appropriately cost a support program using BAE’s IRSP contract, Offerors need to know what the current Wallops budget is for both maintenance assistance requisitions and Depot Level Maintenance (either partial or complete).  Please include the requested information in the Wallops Library.

Response:

IRSP costs for radar maintenance assistance requisitions and radar Depot Level Maintenance are included in the plug number for materials for both RTO’s.
B.8 52.216-18 Ordering, p.6 states that the effective ordering date of the contract is April 1, 2009.  However, Section L Phase-In Plan, p. 123 -124 states that the Phase-In is expected to commence on or about May 1, 2009 and Attachment A of the Performance Evaluation Plan says the evaluation start date begins 1 July 09.   Is it the Government’s intent to commence the start date of the contract 1 Jul 09?  Please provide clarification.
Response:

The effective date of the contract is actually July 9, 2009.  The phase-in period will be May 9, 2009 to July 8, 2009.  All areas of the RFP will be appropriately changed.
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